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K010000  A Life Safety Code Recertification 

Survey was conducted by the Indiana 

State Department of Health in accordance 

with 42 CFR 483.470(j).

Survey Date:  05/12/14

Facility Number:  003833

Provider Number:  15G707

AIM Number:  200453450

Surveyor:  Dennis Austill, Life Safety 

Code Specialist 

At this Life Safety Code survey, AWS 

was found not in compliance with 

Requirements for Participation in 

Medicaid, 42 CFR Subpart 483.470(j), 

Life Safety from Fire and the 2000 

edition of the National Fire Protection 

Association (NFPA) 101, Life Safety 

Code (LSC), Chapter 33, Existing 

Residential Board and Care Occupancies.

This one story facility was fully 

sprinklered.  The facility has a fire alarm 

system with smoke detection in the 

corridors, in resident sleeping rooms and 

in common living areas.  The facility has 

a capacity of 4 and had a census of 4 at 

the time of this survey.
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Calculation of the Evacuation Difficulty 

Score (E-Score) using NFPA 101A, 

Alternative Approaches to Life Safety, 

Chapter 6, rated the facility Slow with an 

E-Score of 2.24.

Quality Review by Robert Booher, Life 

Safety Code Specialist-Medical Surveyor 

on 05/13/14.

The facility was found not in compliance 

with the aforementioned regulatory 

requirements as evidenced by the 

following:

483.470(j)(1)(i) 

LIFE SAFETY CODE STANDARD 

Any hazardous area that is on the same 

floor as, and is in or abuts, a primary means 

of escape or a sleeping room is protected by 

one of the following means:

(a) Protection is an enclosure with a fire 

resistance rating of not less than 1 hour, 

with a self-closing or automatic closing fire 

door in accordance with 7.2.1.8 that has a 

fire protection rating of not less than ¾ hour.

(b) Protection is automatic sprinkler 

protection, in accordance with 32.2.3.5, and 

a smoke partition, in accordance with 8.2.4, 

located between the hazardous area and the 

sleeping area or primary escape route. Any 

doors in such separation is self-closing or 

automatic closing in accordance with 

7.2.1.8.     33.2.3.2.2.

K01S029
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K01S029 The contractor was contacted to 

replace the door leading into the 

garage with a fire rated door and 

self-closing mechanism. The door 

is planned to be replaced by 

6/11/14. This door replacement 

will be completed at all AWS 

group homes in South Bend. The 

Director will follow up with the 

contractor to ensure timely 

completion of replacing the door.  

06/11/2014  12:00:00AMBased on observation and interview, the 

facility failed to ensure the enclosure of 1 

of 1 hazardous areas on the same floor 

which abuts a primary means of escape 

was provided with a self closing or 

automatic closing fire door that has a fire 

rating of at least 45 minutes.  This 

deficient practice could affect all clients 

in the facility.

Findings include:

Based on observation on 05/12/14 at 2:35 

p.m. with the Residential Director, the 

metal door separating the primary means 

of escape from the garage lacked a label 

indicating the fire resistance rating and a 

door closer.  The garage area contained a 

large quantity of medical supplies such as 

seventeen cardboard boxes of briefs, 

fourteen cardboard boxes of exam gloves 

and seven wood pallets.  Based on 

interview at the time of observation, the 

Residential Director acknowledged the 

door lacked a fire resistance rating label 

and was not provided with a door closer.
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